
AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

VIA TELECONFERENCE 
Monday, February 15, 2021 

5:00 P.M. 

Page 1 of 1 

Link to access meeting via teleconference or by phone from your computer, tablet or smartphone: 
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/260464445 

You can also dial in using your phone. 
United States: +1 (872) 240-3412 

Access Code: 260-464-445 

1. Call to Order
2. Roll Call
3. Invocation and Pledge
4. Announcements
5. Approval of the Agenda
6. Public Input
7. Consent Agenda

a. Approve Minutes
• Regular Meeting held February 1, 2021

b. Approve GA Fund 1 Resolution
8. Recognition of Nancy Sites, Director of Family Connection

BUSINESS 
9. ZA-C2100098: Tanco Investments, LLC has requested a zoning amendment for TMP D03 012

Located at 315 Highway 9 North and TMP D03 013 Located at 373 Highway 9 North consisting of
4.09 acres from HB (Highway Business District) to R6 (Multiple-Family Residential District).  Public
Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on January 11, 2021 and City Council on February 1, 2021.
City Council for a decision on February 15, 2021.

10. VA-C2100098: Tanco Investments, LLC has requested the following variances for TMP D03 012
Located at 315 Highway 9 North and TMP D03 013 Located at 373 Highway 9 North for lot width on
2,5,8,11, 14, 17, 20 and 23 will be reduced from 28’ feet to 22' wide. Public Hearing Dates:  Planning
Commission on January 11, 2021 and City Council on February 1, 2021.  City Council for a decision
on February 15, 2021.

11. An Ordinance To Amend Section 2-110 To Provide For Revised Connection Fee For A Water Line
For Fire Suppression And Firefighting; And For Other Purposes. (First Reading: February 1, 2021;
Second Reading and Adoption: February 15, 2021)

WORK SESSION 
STAFF REPORTS 

12. Bob Bolz, City Manager
13. Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator

  EXECUTIVE SESSION IF NEEDED:  Pending or Potential Litigation, Real Estate Acquisition and/or Personnel 
  ADJOURNMENT   

The next scheduled City Council meeting is Monday, March 1, 2021 

Those persons with disabilities who require reasonable accommodations in order to allow them to observe 
and/or participate in this meeting or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting, should 
contact the Clerk at Dawsonville City Hall at 706-265-3256 at least two (2) business days prior to the meeting. 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/260464445
tel:+18722403412,,260464445


                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                    CONSENT AGENDA           

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  02/15/2021     
   
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 

 
   CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF ITEMS BELOW; SEE ATTACHED 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS  
 
 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting held February 1, 2021 

b. Approve GA Fund 1 Resolution 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    7     
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       APPROVE MINUTES    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  02/15/2021     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM: 
 

• REGULAR MEETING HELD ON FEBRUARY 1, 2021 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
 
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
           
  AMEND OR APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
     REQUESTED BY:  Beverly Banister, City Clerk    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

 AGENDA ITEM #   7a      
 

 

 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

VIA TELECONFERENCE 
Monday, February 1, 2021 

5:00 P.M. 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor ProTem Caleb Phillips called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm.   

2. ROLL CALL: Present were Councilmember John Walden, Councilmember Mark French, 
Councilmember Stephen Tolson, City Attorney Kevin Tallant, City Manager Bob Bolz, City Clerk 
Beverly Banister, Planning Director David Picklesimer and Public Works Director Trampas 
Hansard. 
 

3. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE:  Invocation and Pledge were led by Councilmember Walden. 
 

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  None 
 

5. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:  Motion to approve the agenda as presented made by J. Walden; 
second by S. Tolson.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. 
 

6. PUBLIC INPUT:  None 
 

7. CONSENT AGENDA:  Motion to approve the consent agenda for the following items (a, b,c) made 
by M. French; second by J. Walden.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.   

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held January 19, 2021 

b. Approve IGA WITH Dawson County for the 2021 Municipal Election 
c. Approve Change to Financial Policy to Allow Direct Deposit 

BUSINESS 
 

8. ZA-C2100098: Tanco Investments, LLC has requested a zoning amendment for TMP D03 012 
Located at 315 Highway 9 North and TMP D03 013 Located at 373 Highway 9 North consisting of 
4.09 acres from HB (Highway Business District) to R6 (Multiple-Family Residential District).  Public 
Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on January 11, 2021 and City Council on February 1, 2021.  
City Council for a decision on February 15, 2021. 
 

Motion to open the public hearing made by M. French; second by S. Tolson.  Vote carried unanimously 
in favor.   
 

Rachel Burton from Davis Engineering spoke in favor providing a brief description of the development 
stating they have met all the requirements. 
 

No one spoke in opposition to the request.  
 

Councilmember French commented on the landscaping stipulations provided by the Planning 
Commission, should the Council consider them, stating the development regulations do not allow for 
the size and type of trees to be stipulated and should be restricted.  
 

Motion to close the public hearing made by M. French; second by J. Walden.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.  

 

9. VA- C2100098: Tanco Investments, LLC has requested the following variances for TMP D03 012 
Located at 315 Highway 9 North and TMP D03 013 Located at 373 Highway 9 North for lot width on 
2,5,8,11, 14, 17, 20 and 23 will be reduced from 28’ feet to 22' wide. Public Hearing Dates:  Planning 
Commission on January 11, 2021 and City Council on February 1, 2021.  City Council for a decision 
on February 15, 2021. 

 

Motion to open the public hearing made by M. French; second by J. Walden.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.   
 

Rachel Burton from Davis Engineering spoke in favor requesting the variance be approved to meet 
the square footage requirements.  
 

No one spoke in opposition to the request.  
 

Motion to close the public hearing made by M. French; second by S. Tolson.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.  
 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

VIA TELECONFERENCE 
Monday, February 1, 2021 

5:00 P.M. 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

10. An Ordinance To Amend Section 2-110 To Provide For Revised Connection Fee For A Water Line 
For Fire Suppression And Firefighting; And For Other Purposes. (First Reading: February 1, 2021; 
Second Reading and Adoption: February 15, 2021) 
 

Attorney Tallant read the first reading of the ordinance and provided a brief description of the purpose.  
He also clarified there would be no issue with our bond covenants that would prevent us from passing 
this ordinance.  City Clerk Banister stated the ordinance presented to the City Council was modified 
after publication and the size of the fire line connection was changed from five inches to two to eight 
inches. 

 

11. RECOGNITION OF FORMER DAWSON COUNTY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE PRESIDENT:  
Councilmember Tolson spoke on behalf of the City recognizing the work, dedication and contribution 
Christie Moore made to the City and the County as the Dawson County Chamber of Commerce 
President.   

 

12. NEXTSITE AGREEMENT:  Betsy McGriff provided a brief overview of the services provided by the 
Nextsite Agreement.   

 

Motion to renew the Nextsite Agreement made by M. French; motion died for lack of a second. 
 

13. 2021 DAWSONVILLE HISTORY MUSEUM LEASE:  City Manager Bolz reported the lease 
agreement provided to the City Council has been amended and now states the percentage rent will 
be determined by subtracting base rent, utilities and cost of retail purchases from gross receipts and 
multiplying that difference by fifteen percent.   Percentage rent is capped by the amount paid annually 
by the City to an independent contractor providing management to the museum and once the cap is 
met, the rent will resume to base rent plus utilities only.   
 

Motion to approve the revised lease agreement to include the calculation of percentage rent made by 
M. French; second by S. Tolson.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. 

 

14. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT:  Motion to approve the independent contractor 
agreement between the City of Dawsonville and Cindy Elliott to serve as Director for the museum 
made by S. Tolson; second by J. Walden.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 

ADJOURNMENT:   
 

At 5:27 p.m. a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by M. French; second by J. Walden.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor.   

 

 
Minutes approved at the February 1, 2021 City Council meeting. 

 
 
By: CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

         
         
              ___________________________________ 
   Mike Eason, Mayor 
 
     
    
 
 
Attested: _________________________        
              Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 



                                           
 

     
SUBJECT:   APPROVE GEORGIA FUND 1 RESOLUSION 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  02/15/2021    

 
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #     

   Funds Available from: ___ Annual Budget    ___ Capital Budget    Other__ ___________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO REQUEST APPROVAL OF USER CHANGES TO GEORGIA FUND 1 BY RESOLUTION: 
 

• TO ADD ROBIN GAZAWAY AS AN AUTHORIZED USER 
• TO REMOVE HAYDEN WIGGINS AS AN AUTHORIZIED USER (HIS USER ACCESS 

WAS DELETED AS OF 11/20/2020) 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
  

 CITY MANAGER BOB BOLZ AND CITY CLERK BEVERLY BANISTER WILL ALSO REMAIN 
AS AUTHORIZED USERS   

 
 

     OPTIONS: 
  
     APPROVE, AMEND, DENY OR TABLE  
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
    

 
 

 
      
     REQUESTED BY:   Beverly Banister, City Clerk______________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #  7b    
 

 

 



  For Customer Use: 

 I have an existing Acct. #      
This resolution is for: 
 New Account 

 Change to Existing Acct. #           

For OTFS Use Only: 
Acct Approved     Auth Entered. 
Audit   Wire Instructions 
Addr Entered                Wire Templates 

Approval:
AD1           AD2 

Res. form 2000A

GEORGIA FUND 1
(local government investment pool)

RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE INVESTMENT 

WHEREAS, Ga. Code Ann. §§36-83-1 to 36-83-8 authorizes Georgia local governments and other authorized 
entities to invest funds through the local government investment pool, and 

WHEREAS, from time to time it may be advantageous to the  

 to deposit funds available for 
            (Name of Local Government, Political Subdivision or State Agency) 
investment in Georgia Fund 1 (hereinafter referred to as the local government investment pool) as it may deem 
appropriate; and  

WHEREAS, to provide for the safety of such funds deposited in the local government investment pool, 
investments are restricted to those enumerated by Ga. Code Ann. §36-83-8 under the direction of the State Depository 
Board, considering first the probable safety of capital and then the probable income to be derived; and WHEREAS, 
such deposits must first be duly authorized by the governing body of the local government or authorized entity and a 
certified copy of the resolution authorizing such investment filed with the Treasurer of the Office of the State Treasurer; 
and  

WHEREAS, such resolution must name the official(s) authorized to make deposits or withdrawals of funds in the 
local government investment pool; and  

WHEREAS, Ga. Code Ann. §36-83-8 requires a statement of the approximate cash flow requirements of the 
participating government pertaining to the funds to accompany the authorization to invest such funds at the time such 
deposits are duly authorized; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the 
(Board, Council or other Governing Body) 

that funds of the  may be deposited from time to 
    (Local Government, Political Subdivision, or State Agency) 

time in the manner prescribed by law and the applicable policies and procedures for the local government investment 
pool. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT: 
1. Any one of the following individuals shall be authorized to deposit and/or withdraw funds from the local

government investment pool on behalf of such government or other authorized entity (if a listed individual is
employed by an entity other than the depositor, indicate employer):

 Name, Title, (Employer, if applicable)   (Area Code) Phone Number 
Email: ______________________________________________ 

Email: ______________________________________________ 

Email: _______________________________________________ 

Email: _______________________________________________ 

Email: _______________________________________________ 

2. All withdrawals from the local government investment pool shall be wired to the following participant’s 
demand deposit account:  (Many banks have separate instructions for wires and ACH deposits.  Please verify 
both sets of instructions with your bank and provide them below.  This will ensure accurate delivery of your 
funds to the designated bank account).

 (For ACH)   ________________________________________  _____________________________________________ 
(Local Bank Name)     (Account Title) 

  _________________________________   _______________________      
 (ABA Number)     (Account Number)    (City, State) 

(For WIRE)  _________________________________  ____________________________________________________ 
(Local Bank Name) (Account Title) 

_________________________________   ___________________________ _______________________    
 (ABA Number)         (Account Number)                               (City, State) 

(If applicable) Our local bank prefers to receive credit for wire transfers at the following Correspondent Bank:
 



(Bank Name) (City) (ABA Number) (Account Number) 

Additional Bank Account (if applicable): 
 

 

(For ACH)   ________________________________________  _____________________________________________ 
(Local Bank Name)     (Account Title) 

  _________________________________   _______________________      
 (ABA Number)     (Account Number)    (City, State) 

 

(For WIRE)  _________________________________  ____________________________________________________ 
(Local Bank Name) (Account Title) 

  ________________________________________   ______________________________ ________________________ 
(ABA Number)                      (Account Number)                               (City, State) 

 

Correspondent Bank (if applicable): 

 

(Bank Name) (City) (ABA Number)              (Account Number) 

3. The local government investment pool monthly statements of account to:

____________________________________________________________________________________

(Attention) 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

(Address) 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

(City, State & Zip Code) 

4. Changes in the above authorization shall be made by cancellation or replacement resolution delivered to the

Office of the State Treasurer.  Until such a replacement resolution is received by the Office of the State Treasurer,

the above authorized individuals, local government demand account instructions and statement mailing address(es)

shall remain in full force and effect.

5. The following schedule represents the period in which existing balances are currently expected to remain
invested in the local government investment pool:

% 30 days or less; 
% more than 30 days but less than 90 days; 
% 90 days or longer.  

    100  % 

 

Entered at    , Georgia this      day of   20     . 

 

   (Signature of Head of Governing Authority) 

(Please Print or Type - Head of Governing Authority) 

(Title) 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this   day of   20      . 

 (Notary Public)

Please complete and return an original copy to: 
Georgia Fund 1 
Office of the State Treasurer 
200 Piedmont Avenue 
Suite 1204, West Tower 
Atlanta, GA  30334-5527 

Telephone: (404) 656-2993
Toll Free: (800) 222-6748
Fax:  (404) 656-9048

Georgia Fund 1 (local government investment pool) deposits are not guaranteed or insured by any bank, the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), the Federal Reserve Board, the State of Georgia or any other agency. 

NOTARY SEAL 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   RECOGNITION OF NANCY STITES, DIRECTOR OF FAMILY CONNECTION  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  02/15/2021    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

   TO RECOGNIZE THE DIRECTOR OF FAMILY CONNECTION, NANCY STITES 
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
    

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Stephen Tolson, Councilmember______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   8     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:   ZA-C2100098    _______________________ 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  02/15/2021       
 
 

BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #_______________________________________ 

 Funds Available from: _____  Annual Budget:_____ Capital Budget  Other________  
 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____ Enterprise Fun:_____ General Fund 

 

 

PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:     VOTE  
Tanco Investments, LLC has requested a zoning amendment for TMP D03 012 Located at 315 Highway 9 North and TMP D03 013 
Located at 373 Highway 9 North consisting of 4.09 acres from HB (Highway Business District) to R6 (Multiple-Family Residential 
District).  Public Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on January 11, 2021 and City Council on February 1, 2021. City Council for 
a decision on February 15, 2021. 
 
HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 

 

• For background see Planning and Zoning letter dated December 30, 2020. 
• Planning Commission approved the requested zoning amendment with following condition: 

1.) Install privacy fence along the rear lot line 1 through 24.  Exception will be no privacy fence required were adjoining 
property already has an existing privacy fence. 

2.) Install privacy fence along lot line 1 and 24 to shield view of back yard of Town Home from Highway 9. 
3.) Install split rail fence along open space fronting Highway 9 frontage. 
4.) Install brick, rock and hardie board façade front of all Town Homes.  Entrance monument shall be the same rock and 

brick material. 
5.) Town Homes shall be a minimum of 1,500 square feet heated floor space, with the exception of lots 10, 11 and 12. 
6.) Install 8’ft to 10‘ft tall evergreen trees within the 10’ft planted buffer on lots 1 through 12. 
7.) Install one each 2” to 2.5” caliper maple, crepe myrtle or oak trees with a root barrier on front of each lot. 
8.) Provide a landscape plan and include 3” caliper tree 25’ft on center to shield view of lot 1 Town Home exterior wall from 

Highway 9. 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

OPTIONS: 
 
 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
Approve, Deny or Postpone 
 

 
 

DEPARTMENT:  Planning and Zoning______________________________________________ 
 

REQUESTED BY: David Picklesimer_        ____________________________________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 9 
 































                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:   VA-C2100098    _______________________ 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  02/15/2021       
 
 

BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #_______________________________________ 

 Funds Available from: _____  Annual Budget:_____ Capital Budget  Other________  
 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____ Enterprise Fun:_____ General Fund 

 

 

PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:     VOTE  
Tanco Investments, LLC has requested the following variances for TMP D03 012 Located at 315 Highway 9 North and TMP D03 
013 Located at 373 Highway 9 North for lot width on 2, 5, 8, 11, 14, 17, 20 and 23 will be reduced from 28’ feet to 22' wide. Public 
Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on January 11, 2021 and City Council on February 1, 2021.  City Council for a decision on 
February 15, 2021. 
 
HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 

 

• Dawson County Emergency Services has no comments reference to VA C2100098. 
• The applicants request to reduce all of the center lot widths from 28’ft to 22’ft will still allow the units to meet the minimum 

heated space of 1,200sqft.  With the lot reduction widths, the lot size minimum square footage will exceed the minimum 
2,800sqft except for Lot 11. 

• Planning Commission approved the variance to reduce lot widths from 28’ft to 22’ft on lots 2, 5, 8, 11, 14, 17, 20 and 23. 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

OPTIONS: 
 
 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
Approve, Deny or Postpone 
 

 
 

DEPARTMENT:  Planning and Zoning______________________________________________ 
 

REQUESTED BY: David Picklesimer_        ____________________________________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 10 
 





















                                           
 

 

     SUBJECT:   ORDINANCE AMENDMENT– CONNECTION FEE FOR FIRE LINE  
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  02/15/2021       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:      SECOND READING AND VOTE 
  

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 2-110 TO PROVIDE FOR REVISED CONNECTION 
FEE FOR A WATER LINE FOR FIRE SUPPRESSION AND FIREFIGHTING; AND FOR 
OTHER PURPOSES. 
 
FIRST READING: FEBRUARY 1, 2021  
SECOND READING AND CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION: FEBRUARY 15, 2021 

 
 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
      
      
      
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
    APPROVE, AMEND, DENY OR TABLE  
     
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
        
 
 

 
          REQUESTED BY:   David Picklesimer, Planning Director______________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #  11    
 

 

 



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

  
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF  
DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA 

 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 01-2021 

 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 2-110 TO PROVIDE FOR REVISED 
CONNECTION FEE FOR A WATER LINE FOR FIRE SUPPRESSION AND 
FIREFIGHTING; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 
 
WHEREAS, the Charter of the City of Dawsonville authorizes the creation, ownership, 
and maintenance of a water utility and for the City to fix charges and rates therefore; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Charter of the City of Dawsonville further authorizes the City to adopt 
regulations related to fire prevention and firefighting; 
 
WHEREAS, there are instances where the necessary demand for the prevention and 
fighting of fire do not correspond to the normal and anticipated uses of water for a given 
business or establishment;  
 
WHEREAS, the costs and expenses associated with certain infrastructure as currently 
assessed when the infrastructure is required for firefighting or suppression but not 
normal anticipated use of a business or establishment could be a deterrent to economic 
growth in the City of Dawsonville; 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Dawsonville desires to promote and encourage responsible 
economic growth and business development, while maintaining appropriate and 
necessary firefighting infrastructure in place; 
 
AND WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council desire to amend the City water connection 
fees consistent with the above stated goals and consistent with the powers granted to the 
City in its Charter;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 
HEREBY ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1. 
 
Section 2-110 of Chapter 2, Article IV of the Code of the City of Dawsonville, Georgia, is 
hereby amended by adding there to the following language to subsection (7) Water Service 
Connection Fees pursuant to § 14-23(a) of the Code of the City of Dawsonville Georgia:  
 

 14-23(a). Water service connection fees (times the number of connections desired): 

Subject Matter: Connection Fee for Fire Line 
Date of First Reading: February 1, 2021 
Date of Second Reading: February 15, 2021 
Date of Adoption:  
 



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

2’’ through 8’’ (fire line only to be used in the event of a firefighting/fire 
suppression; unauthorized use requires payment of standard connection fee) 

$3,500.00 

  

SECTION 2. 
 

Nothing contained herein shall prevent the assessment of the minimum monthly service 
charge otherwise called for pursuant to the Code of the City of Dawsonville regardless of 
whether the connection is utilized in a given month. 
 

SECTION 3. 
 
All Ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 

SECTION 4.  
 

This ordinance shall become effective upon passage hereof, the public good demanding 
it. 
 
 
SO ADOPTED AND ORDAINED by the City Council of Dawsonville, Georgia, this 
_____ day of ________________, 2021. 
 
MAYOR AND DAWSONVILLE CITY  
COUNCIL 
 
 
_____________     
Mike Eason, Mayor 

 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
Caleb Phillips, Council Member Post 1 

 
 
 
____________________________ 
Stephen Tolson, Council Member Post 2 

 
 
 
___________________________ 
John Walden, Council Member Post 3 

 
 
 
ATTESTED TO BY: 
 
 
       
Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 

 
 
 
___________________________ 
Mark French, Council Member Post 4 

 



      

  SUBJECT:  STAFF REPORT: CITY MANAGER 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 02/15/2021 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA 

 Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 

  TO PROVIDE PROJECT UPDATES 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 

    SEE ATTACHED OUTLINE  

     OPTIONS: 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 

     REQUESTED BY: Bob Bolz, City Manager 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR 

AGENDA ITEM #     12 



CITY MANAGER’S REPORT – FEBRUARY 10, 2021 

FOR CITY COUNCIL MEETING FEBRUARY 15, 2021 

COVID: COVID numbers are IMPROVING, staff continue our pandemic protocol and modified behavior. 
We recommend shutting down City Hall at least through the end of February. The Design Guidelines 
Committee will not meet in person February but have been assigned by Joe Rothwell of GMRC 
homework to do and submit online. All recent Council and Commission meetings have been held 
virtually and recommend continuing in that manner. Currently no staff are on quarantine or dealing with 
the virus. 

Atlanta Motorsports Park Cited for Violation of Sound Stipulations: With multiple citations issued to 
AMP for violation of their sound stipulations in October and November, their CEO has been in contact 
with City Solicitor Howell. This will come to City Court February 18th. 

Winter Storm Warnings: This time of year, we continue to be vigilant and always prepared for winter 
weather. One Winter Warning Storm Warning so far this report period. Public Works personnel did a great 
job keeping an eye on the roads and scraping some stubborn areas  

GRHOF/DHM: The DHM had ultra-success private and public unveilings of the new Chase Elliott exhibit, 
and it looks great. However, the entire facility looks the best it has in years. Director Elliott continues to 
do a superb job making small and large improvements to this Dawsonville gem.  

Test Manhole Project at Gold Creek Foods: SCADA is being installed at this writing. Then it will be added 
to the computer that sends pages to identified cell phones. By the week of February 22nd, this facility 
should be 100% live. 

SPLOST VII: Research, planning and negotiations continue. 

Refurbish of Burt Creek/Water Tower #2: On February 10th, Turnipseed Engineers held the pre-
construction meeting for the Burt Creek Water Tower refurbish. The contractor has been given the 
notice to proceed effective February 22nd and estimates 8 – 10 weeks construction time depending on 
what weather Mother Nature provides. This ensures the work is complete and the tank refilled before 
hot weather sets in. Before the 22nd, city personnel will advise the HOA’s of Burts Crossing 1 and 2, the 
Sheriff’s Department, and LCG who is accessing portions of Thunder Road from that area of the work. 
There will be some noise at times from a large air compressor and generators. The contractor is aware 
that Sunday work is prohibited. Gary Barr as a contractor will be working with city personnel to 
supervise the project. 

Paving Repairs to Main Street, Memory Lane & Jack Heard Street: Turnipseed is finalizing the bid 
documents for advertisement for the paving of Main Street, Jack Heard and Memory Lane as we want to 



pave these at the same time if funding will be adequate. The only missing piece of the puzzle is the 
hydrology study for Jack Heard. COVID impacted surveying staff slowing the package preparation up. It 
should be completed soon and the packet ready for seeking bids.  Preliminary bids indicate $52,500 for 
Main Street, $144,000 for Memory Lane,  and $47,000 for Jack Heard. The Memory Lane estimate does 
not include paving of the dog park parking area  or the culvert expansion along Jack Heard. However, 
Lamar Rogers with GBT is concerned that the culvert expansion at Jack Heard could be very expensive, 
maybe $30,000+, we will know more once the hydrology study is complete. We have $162,000 in 
SPLOST VI to go toward these projects. We will see how the bids come out. I anticipate GBT having the 
bids ready to go out before the middle of February. 

Sidewalks: The sidewalk bid documents are complete and ready to bid out. We will be advertising these 
for bid in the immediate future.  

Main Street Park: Progress continues as we work to increase the amenities and operation of this 
wonderful addition to the city, including:  

• The dog park has fencing and dog waste stations. We continue working with our Eagle Scout 
candidate for move this project along.  

• Staff met with county Public Works Director David McKee to discuss the trail to the library. He 
advised all they need for the IGA to proceed is an engineered drawing of the bridge, not the 
entire trail. GBT is preparing an engineered drawing for us. 

• We met with the statewide contract vendor for fitness trail equipment and picnic shelters. We 
hope to have cost information for a recommendation to bring to the City Council and Mayor 
soon. Staff are visiting nearby sites where these facilities are already in place. 

• Staff met with other vendors to discuss picnic shelter construction. 
• We are beginning research regarding modular skate parks for possible consideration as a future 

park 

Bee City: We are working with the Women’s Club to get the Bee City signs to be erected as people travel 
into our county. GDOT does not allow erection of these signs on state ROW. Public Works is identifying 
where they can be located on city ROW, near our city limit signs. 

Moonshine Festival: The Lesson Learned session was held on February 3rd and went very well. Several 
good suggestions were made by both sides. Participants included, from Kare for Kids – Rhonda Goodwin, 
Tiffany Buchan, Tom French, and Angela Harbin. From the city – Mayor Mike Eason, CM Caleb Phillips, 
Trampas Hansard, Sara Beacham and Bob Bolz. 

Water-Sewer Capital Issues: Staff from Utilities, Public Works, Finance and Planning/Zoning met with 
Lamar Rogers  on February 10th to discuss several priority issues. The most critical is moving forward with 
the wastewater treatment plan. Staff will be presenting some options in the immediate future to get this 
project jump started. 

Personnel: 

• Please join me in welcoming to our team our new Finance Administrator Robin Gazaway. She 
has a  bachelor’s degree in Accounting, an MBA, her CPA, and 35 years of combined experience, 



15 as Financial Director of a county. What made her stand out the most is her government 
accounting experience. She served 12 years as the Finance Director for Union County. While 
with Union County, she even managed an enterprise fund for the golf course they operate, and 
she foresaw the 2008 collapse of the economy and adjusted. Robin worked an additional three 
years as the Chief Financial Officer/Finance Director for Fanning County and brought that county 
their first clean audit ever. She has been getting her feet wet this week, meet staff, learning our 
operation, studying revenue controls, and familiarizing herself with budgets. She and Hayden 
Wiggins will meet February 13th for some training. We are excited to have Robin on our team 
and look for great things from her. 

• We received 14 applications in three rounds of advertising and scheduled ten interviews for 
February 8 and 9 for the Equipment Operator position that has been vacant since Clay Moss 
promoted to Planning and Zoning. A panel consist of myself, Trampas, Steven and Donna 
conducted these interviews and the top two candidates were invited back for a second 
interview. We hope to decide by week’s end with an offer made to the top ranked candidate. 

• The Utility Department is still down one staff member and we are working to rectify that in the 
next few weeks. 

• We are moving forward with GMA recommendations. 
 

Leak Adjustments 

     DATE                                      NAME                            WATER         SEWER       TOTAL 

1/26/2021 M FALLSTROM 53.04 89.94 142.98 Repaired Toilet Leak 

1/26/2021 D FLAIR 56.69 88.53 145.22 Repaired Toilet Leak 

2/5/2021 S GRABOWSKI 0 43.85 43.85 Underground leak outside house 

2/5/2021 A VAUGHTERS 1001.22 0 1001.22 Leak on customer side of meter 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  02/15/2021       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO PRESENT FUND BALANCE AND ACTIVITY THROUGH JANUARY 31, 2021  

 
 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
    SEE ATTACHED FINANCIAL REPORTS  
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   13       
 

 

 








	1 02.15.2021 AGENDA City Council Regular Meeting
	7. Executive Summary For Agenda Items CONSENT AGENDA
	7a. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items MINUTES
	7a. 2 02.01.2021 MINUTES.draft
	7b. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items GA FUND ONE
	7b. 2 GF1 Resolution
	8. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items NANCY STITES
	9. ZA C2100098
	10. VA-C2100098
	11. 1 Executive Summary For FIRE LINE ORDINANCE
	11. 2 Utilities Fire Line Ordinance Amendment 2021
	12. 1  Executive Summary For Agenda Items CITY MANAGER
	12. 2 02152021 CC CITY MANAGER REPORT
	13. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR
	13. 2 General Fund
	20210210093123582.pdf

	13. 3 Enterprise Fund
	20210210093246813.pdf

	13. 4 SPLOST

	I have an existing Acct: 
	This resolution is for:     
	New Account: 
	undefined: 
	Change to Existing Acct: 
	WHEREAS from time to time it may be advantageous to the: 
	Name of Local Government Political Subdivision or State Agency:                       CITY OF DAWSONVILLE
	Board Council or other Governing Body:         CITY OF DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL
	Local Government Political Subdivision or State Agency:                                     CITY OF DAWSONVILLE
	Name Title Employer if applicable: ROBERT BOLZ, CITY MANAGER
	Area Code Phone Number: (706)
	undefined_2: 265-3256
	Email 1: CITYMANAGER@DAWSONVILLE-GA.GOV
	Email 2: BEVERLY A. BANISTER
	undefined_3: (706)
	undefined_4: 265-3256
	undefined_5: CLERK@DAWSONVILLE-GA.GOV
	undefined_6: (706)
	undefined_7: 265-3256
	Email: ROBIN GAZAWAY
	undefined_8: ROBIN.GAZAWAY@DAWSONVILLE-GA.GOV
	undefined_9: 
	undefined_10: 
	Email_2: 
	undefined_11: 
	undefined_12: 
	undefined_13: 
	Email_3: 
	All withdrawals from the local government investment pool shall be wired to the following participants: 
	Local Bank Name:   
	Account Title:       
	ABA Number:                    
	Account Number:               
	City State: 
	Local Bank Name_2: 
	Account Title_2: 
	ABA Number_2: 
	Account Number_2: 
	City State_2: 
	Bank Name: 
	City: 
	ABA Number_3: 
	Account Number_3: 
	Local Bank Name_3: 
	Account Title_3: 
	ABA Number_4: 
	Account Number_4: 
	City State_3: 
	Local Bank Name_4: 
	Account Title_4: 
	ABA Number_5: 
	Account Number_5: 
	City State_4: 
	Bank Name_2: 
	City_2: 
	ABA Number_6: 
	Account Number_6: 
	Attention:                                               CITY OF DAWSONVILLE
	Address:                                               415 HWY 53 E, SUITE 100
	City State  Zip Code:                                               DAWSONVILLE, GA 30534
	30 days or less: 
	more than 30 days but less than 90 days: 
	100: 
	Entered at: 
	Georgia this: 
	day of: 
	Please Print or Type  Head of Governing Authority: 
	Title: 
	Sworn to and subscribed before me this 1: 
	day of_2: 


